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/ (432)523-4820
111 Logsdon * Andrews, Texas 79714 www.cityofandrews.org

March 23, 2023

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and Citizens of Andrews, Texas:

The Finance Department and the City Manager’s Office are pleased to submit the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the City of Andrews, Texas, for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2022. The purpose of the ACFR is to provide accurate and meaningful
information concerning the City’s financial condition and performance. Independent auditors
have verified that the City has fairly presented its financial position, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The ACFR satisfies Section 103.001 of the Texas Local Government Code requiring annual
audits of all municipalities. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the City.

To the best of our knowledge and belief the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and
is organized in a manner designed to fairly present the financial position and results of operations
of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds. We also believe that all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s
financial affairs have been included.

Independent audits are an essential element of financial control and accountability. Federal
guidelines established for local governments receiving federal assistance require that programs
receiving federal assistance be audited in conjunction with the local government’s annual audit
under the “single audit” concept. The City has complied with these requirements. The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. Management discussion and analysis complement this letter of transmittal and should
be read in conjunction with it.

City Profile

The City of Andrews, population 13,487, is in the oil-rich Permian Basin in West Texas, thirty
miles from the New Mexico border. It is approximately 100 miles south of Lubbock, Texas, and
thirty-five miles north of Midland and Odessa, Texas. Located in Andrews County, it is the only
town in the County and serves as the county seat. Commercial air travel is available through
Midland International Airport.



The City is a home rule city (1959) operating under the Council-Manager form of government.
The City Council is comprised of the Mayor and five Council Members, who enact local laws,
determine policies, and adopt the annual budget. The City Manager is appointed by the City
Council and is responsible for the daily management of the City. The Basic Financial Statements
of the City include all government activities, organizations, and functions for which the City is
financially accountable as defined by the GASB. Based on these criteria Andrews Economic
Development Corporation is a component unit and is discretely presented in this report.

The City provides its citizens with those services that have proven to be necessary and
meaningful the City can provide at the least cost. Major services provided under general
government and enterprise functions include police and emergency medical service, water and
sewer services, sanitation services, community services, and general administrative services. The
emergency medical services are provided through a contract with Andrews Hospital District
which provides the funding for the services. Billing and collection are done by Permian Regional
Medical Center. The Fire Department is an all-volunteer, 45-member, department with the City
providing funds for its operation. Equipment is provided by Andrews County. Economic
Development is provided by Andrews Economic Development Corporation (AEDC), a 4A
Corporation which reports to the City Council. AEDC began operations January 1, 2006, with
funding provided by the economic sales tax the citizens of Andrews approved in the May 2005
election.

Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The City’s accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified
accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures
being recorded when the services or goods are received, and the liabilities are incurred.
Accounting records for the City’s utilities and other proprietary activities are maintained on the
accrual basis.

In developing and maintaining the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of the internal control structure. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

The City Charter provides that the City Council shall adopt the annual budget prepared by the
City Manager. This budget is reviewed by the City Council and is formally adopted by the
passage of a budget ordinance. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts
between the line items and departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the
total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.

Budgetary control has been established at the individual fund level. Financial reports are
produced showing budget and actual expenditures by line item and are distributed monthly to
City departmental management and to others on request. Individual line items are reviewed and
analyzed for budgetary compliance. Personnel expenditures are monitored and controlled at a
position level and capital expenditures are monitored and controlled item by item. Revenue
budgets are reviewed monthly.



Local Economy

The City of Andrews is located in the oil-rich Permian Basin and has long been defined by
periods of economic boom and bust, historically tied to fluctuations with the oil and gas industry.
During periods of economic prosperity, the region experiences population growth and an increase
in residential and business activity. During periods of economic bust very little growth, and in
many cases population decline, are common.

Andrews experienced significant economic growth in the early 2010s as the United States
climbed out of recession. With rising energy prices as its catalyst, the local economy became one
of the most rapidly growing in the nation, resulting in hundreds of new jobs and a population
influx that has held to present date.

At the end of FY 2022, the price per barrel of WTI crude sat at $79.49, up from $75.03 per barrel
at the beginning of FY 2022. According to the Texas Railroad Commission, oil production in
Andrews County during 2022 remained relatively unchanged from 2021, coming in just over 45
million barrels. With oil prices remaining fairly consistent during FY 2022, and averaging well
above FY 2021, revenues for sales tax — a strong indicator of local oil activity — increased 25.9%
from 2021 to 2022.

According to the Texas Workforce Commission, the civilian labor force in Andrews County
dropped from 8,664 in September 2021 to 8,592 in September 2022. The unemployment rate,
however, also decreased from 5.1% to 3.4% during this same period. The September 2022
unemployment rate of 3.4% is slightly lower than the state level of 4.0% and the federal level of
3.5%.

Richard Dealy, President and Chief Operating Officer of Pioneer Natural Resources — one of the
largest oil producers in the region — believes oil prices will hover around $90 per barrel during
2023 as demand increases. Local sales tax figures for the first four months of FY 2023 show an
increase of 55.1% from the same period in FY 2022.

Financial Policies

The financial management policies of the City are designed to ensure the financial integrity of the
City’s government and assist the City in achieving the following:

e Quality City services that meet the needs and desires of the citizens in a fair and
consistent manner.

e A financial base sufficient to maintain or enhance City assets required to support
community service demands.

e Prudent and professional financial management practices to assure citizens of Andrews
and the financial community that City government is well managed and in sound fiscal
condition.

o Cost effective services to citizens through cooperation with other government entities.

e A capital improvement program that maintains and enhances the public’s assets.

To achieve the above policies, the City plans and follows its budget carefully. Capital
improvements follow a ten-year long-range financial plan. The City operates a revenue system
that is simple and reliable so assurances can be provided that the revenue base will materialize
according to budget planning. Consistent monitoring and collection policies are maintained to
ensure the integrity of the revenue system. The City will periodically review its fee structure to
ensure that revenue collections are adequate to meet corresponding expenditures (cost of service
concept). Nonrecurring (i.e., “one-time”) resource inflows are not used for operating purposes.



The City strives to budget realistically, but not “over anticipate” its revenues. In general, long-
term needs are met through “pay-as-you-go” fiscal policies, using cash or other current assets
rather than debt issuance to fund capital projects. On rare occasion, the City may deploy a “pay-
as-you-use” fiscal policy, using debt financing to spread the costs of public infrastructure
throughout the life of the asset. The only debt of the City relates to the certificates of obligation
for the construction of the Truck Reliever Route which are tied to a voter-approved, dedicated
source of revenue (a one-quarter cent sales tax).

Long-term financial planning and major initiatives

Concurrent with the annual budget process, a ten-year long-range financial plan is prepared to
forecast fund balances using projected capital investments and conservative assumptions
regarding future operating budgets. This plan enables City leadership to focus on the “big
picture” while meeting annual needs through the pay-as-you-go financial approach. In 2013, the
City, with the assistance of a professional consulting firm, developed a Comprehensive Plan to
direct the growth and physical development of the City for the next 10 to 20 years.

Major initiatives planned by the City for the coming years include:

Ensure the City’s water supply can meet current and future demand — In 2019, the City, with the
assistance of a professional engineering firm, developed a water wellfield development plan to
ensure the City’s water supply can meet current and future demand. In FY 2024, the City will
replace an aging 7-mile water transmission with a larger line to provide the City with two
transmission lines capable of delivering water to the City during peak usage. Within the next 10
years, plans include tying the City’s two wellfields together to provide much needed redundancy
in the system should one of the transmission lines be down for a short time. Plans also include
drilling additional water wells as water demand increases.

Ensure the City’s water distribution and wastewater/stormwater collection systems can meet
current and future demand — In 2020, the City and the Andrews Economic Development
Corporation, with the assistance of a professional engineering firm, developed an Infrastructure
Master Plan to ensure there is enough infrastructure capacity in the right areas of the municipality
at the right service levels at the right time to accommodate future development and
redevelopment necessary to address the City’s expected growth over the next 10-20 years. In FY
2022, the City began a program to systematically replace over 2% of its water lines and over 1%
of its sewer lines each year. Within the next 10 years, plans include increasing water capacity to
northwest and southwest Andrews by adding water and wastewater lines and a new water tower.

Maintain the quality of City roadways — In 2020, the City, with the assistance of a professional
engineering firm, professionally graded all roads within the city limits to help create and
prioritize an effective resurfacing strategy. In 2021, the City initiated a plan to resurface all
arterial roads within the city limits by 2030.

Upgrade City Facilities — In 2021, the City, with the assistance of a professional architect firm,
developed a Facilities Plan to determine and analyze current and projected space needs and
requirements for the City projected out to 2035. In FY2023, the City will complete construction
of a new City Hall and the renovation of a purchased building to accommodate Municipal Court
and the City Council Chambers. Plans call for renovating the old City Hall building to
accommodate the Police Department and renovating the Public Safety Building to accommodate
Economic and Community Services.



All the aforementioned initiatives are an aggressive approach led by the Andrews City Council in
an effort to attract people and businesses to Andrews. Citizens of Andrews think Andrews is a
good place and want Andrews to be a City of choice in which to work, live and raise children.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Andrews for its
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. This was the
forty-second consecutive year that the municipal government has received this award. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR), whose contents conform to
program standards. Such ACFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A certificate is valid for a period of one year only. However, we believe that our current annual
comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirement, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

The City also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual
budget document for fiscal year beginning October 1, 2022. To qualify for the Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget document had to be judged proficient as a
policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. This was
the eleventh consecutive year that the municipal government has received this award.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the Finance Department. Appreciation is expressed to City
employees throughout the organization, especially those employees who were instrumental in the
successful completion of this report.

We would like to thank the members of the City Council for their interest and support in planning
and conducting the financial operation of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Andrews’ finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Director of Finance, 111 Logsdon, Andrews, Texas 79714. The ACFR is also
accessible on the City’s website.

Respectfully submitted,
Steve Eggleston Ashton Jones
City Manager Director of Finance
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WAYNE M. MANNING m

CERTIFIED PuBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Andrews, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of City of Andrews, Texas (the “City”), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2022, and the respective changes
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The City’'s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

é% Texas Society of

CPA Certified Public Accountants e

MEMBER OF
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

P.O. Box 1074 ¢ Andrews, Texas 79714
(432) 523-7261 « www.wmmcpa.com e (432) 224-1068 fax
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Andrews, Texas
Page 2

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Governmental
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Governmental Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
information, pension information, and other-post employment benefit information, as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Andrews, Texas
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information, such as the combining and individual fund statements and schedules and schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
and Texas Grant Management Standards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules and schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, combining and individual fund statements and schedules and schedule of expenditures of
federal and state awards is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basis financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

Management is responsible for the other information ACFR. The other information comprises the
introductory section and statistical section but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
9, 2023 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

L%
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Wayne M. Manning, CPA
Andrews, Texas
March 9, 2023
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CITY OF ANDREWS, TEXAS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides readers a narrative overview and analysis
of the financial activities of the City of Andrews for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022. Readers
are encouraged to consider the information included in the transmittal letter and in the other sections of
the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) e.g., combining statements, and the statistical
section in conjunction with the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following financial highlights summarize the City’s financial position for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2022.

Government-wide

e The City’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of
the 2022 fiscal year by $76,137,519(net position). Of this amount, $17,747,137 represents
unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

e During 2022, the City’s total net position increased $2,848,546 or 3.89%, related to operations. The
net position of business-type activities increased by $1,522,639, or 5.04%, from operations. The net
position of governmental activities increased by $1,325,907, or 3.08%, from operations.

e Total expenses of all the City’s programs were $18,755,386 in 2022.
Fund Statements

e As of September 30, 2022, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$19,670,596, an increase from prior year of $77,264. Of this total amount, $8,231,519 or
approximately 41.8%, is unassigned and available for use to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund was $8,231,519,
or 67.7% of the General Fund expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The overview of the financial statements is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This is the portion of the CAFR on which the auditors express an opinion. The report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

e The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all of the City’'s assets and
liabilities, as well as any deferred outflows and inflows. The difference between assets plus
deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred inflows is reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in the future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences).

In the aforementioned statements, the City’s business is divided into four kinds of activities:

Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic functions are reported here, including general
government, public safety, and public works. Property taxes, sales taxes and franchise fees provide
the majority of funding for these activities, with the addition of charges for services, grants and
contributions.

Business-type Activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help recover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City’'s water and sewer system is reported here, as well as
sanitation operations.

Component Units — The City maintains one component unit, the Andrews Economic Development
Corporation (AEDC). Although legally separate, this component unit is important because the City
is financially accountable for them. The City includes the AEDC as a discretely presented
component unit on the government-wide statements because it does not function as an integral part
of the primary government. Financial information for the AEDC is reported separately from the
financial information presented for the primary government itself. Supplementary information for the
AEDC can be found on pages 126-128.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside of the government. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources are not available to support the City’s own programs. Custodial
funds, a type of fiduciary fund, are used to report resources held by the City in a purely custodial
capacity (assets=liabilities) for individuals, private organizations and other governments. The City
maintains two custodial funds. The Escrow Fund is used to report resources held for developers for
curb and gutter, paving, and water and sewer extensions. The Employee Christmas Fund is used to
report resources held for participating employees in a Christmas savings account. Supplementary
information for the custodial funds can be found on pages 117.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories — governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental
funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near term financing decisions. Both the governmental
funds balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
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The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General Fund. Data from the other nine
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated, non-major fund presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements on pages 101-102 of this report.

e Proprietary Funds — Enterprise funds, a type of proprietary fund, are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for its water/sewer and sanitation operations. The City does
not currently use any internal service funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information
as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the Water/Sewer and Sanitation funds since both are
considered to be major funds of the City. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be
found on pages 35-37 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is necessary to
acquire a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 40-74.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found
on pages 78-81 of this report.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE: GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. For the City of Andrews, assets plus deferred outflows exceeded liabilities plus deferred inflows
by $76,180,886 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Net Position for the City of Andrews

Governmental Business-type Total
$000 Activities Activities
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current & other assets $21,376  $21,353 $12,273 $6,663 $33,649  $28,016
Capital assets (net) 37,488 36,983 28,220 26,155 65,708 63,138
Total assets 58,864 58,336 40,493 32,818 99,357 91,154
Deferred Outflows 1,015 689 845 256 1,860 945
Long-term liabilities 12,731 14,396 7,829 1,968 20,560 16,364
Other liabilities 1,001 792 630 590 1,631 1,382
Total liabilities 13,732 15,188 8,459 2,558 22,191 17,746
Deferred Inflows 1,743 758 1,145 305 2,888 1,063
Net Position:
Invested in Capital Assets 26,747 25,930 28,220 26,155 54,967 52,085
Restricted 2,434 2,013 990 880 3,424 2,893
Unrestricted 15,223 15,135 2,524 3,175 17,747 18,310
Total net position $44,404 $43,078 $31,734 $30,210 $76,138 $73,288
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The largest portion of the City’s net position (72.15%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
building, equipment, improvements, and infrastructure) less any related outstanding debt that was used to
acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide a variety of services to its citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt must
be provided from other resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position (4.49%) represents resources subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $17,790,504 is unrestricted and may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all reported categories
of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for separate governmental and business-
type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

City of Andrews’ Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type Total
$000 Activities Activities
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Fees, fines & charges for service $ 619 $ 560 $7,155 $6,781 $7,774 $7,341

Operating grants & contributions 4,092 3,500 4,092 3,500
Capital grants & contributions 21 52 - 504 21 556
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,691 1,706 - - 1,691 1,706
Sales tax 6,647 5,280 - - 6,647 5,280
Franchise fees 702 705 - - 702 705
Other 239 217 - - 239 217
Miscellaneous Revenue 42 528 184 165 226 693
Investment income 117 108 93 6 210 114
Gain on disposition of assets - - 2 42 2 42
Transfers - 11 - - - 11
Total revenues 14,170 12,667 7,434 7,498 21,604 20,165
Expenses:
General government & admin 1,776 2,188 - - 1,776 2,188
Public safety 6,072 5,581 - - 6,209 5,581
Highways & streets 2,425 2,633 - - 2,425 2,633
Culture-recreation 1,220 1,065 - - 1,220 1,065
Economic development 292 386 - - 292 386
Interest 357 419 - - 357 419
Water & sewer - - 4,699 4,257 4,699 4,257
Sanitation - - 1,914 1,910 1,914 1,910
Total expenses 12,142 12,272 6,613 6,167 18,755 18,439
Increase/(decrease) before transfers 2,028 395 821 1,331 2,849 1,726
Transfers (702) - 702 - - -
Change in net position 1,326 395 1,523 1,331 2,849 1,726
Net position — beginning 43,078 42,683 30,211 28,880 73,289 71,563
Prior Period Adjustment - - - - - -
Net position - ending $44,404 $43,078 $31,734 $30,211 $76,138 $73,137
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Governmental Activities. During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities
increased $1,325,907 or 3.08% from the prior year for an ending balance of $44,403,947. Key elements
of this change are as follows:

Sales Tax Revenues increased $1,366,104 as a result of increased business activity in the region.

Operating Grants and Contributions increased by $591,672 due to increased funding from the
hospital since the EMS operating budget increased by $344,434 and the hospital purchased an
ambulance for EMS in the amount of $244,001.

The largest increase in expenses was in the area of public safety for $448,251 due to an increase
in payroll. The EMS department switched to 24 hour shifts from 19 hour shifts which increased their
expenses from the prior year by $344,434. The rest of the difference is attributed to the police
department adding 2 full time officers and a crime scene investigator.

General Operations expenses increased $63,524 due to three employee retirement payouts during
the fiscal year.

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

Operating grants &
Charges for contributions
services 29%
4% Capital grants &
Other

- contributions

1% 0%
Other taxes‘ Property taxes
7% = 12%

Sales taxes
47%

Business-type Activities. During the current fiscal year, net position for business-type activities
increased $1,522,640 or 5.0% from the prior year for an ending balance of $31,733,572. Key elements of
this change are as follows:

Water and sewer charges for services covered expenses by $357,494. Water and sewer charges
for services increased $303,107 due to an increased usage of water during the fiscal year.
Expenses increased $442,142 mainly due to an increase in the purchase of chemicals for the
water treatment plant.

Sanitation charges for services did cover operating expenses causing an income from operations
of $184,145. Revenue increased $70,410 primarily due to more construction disposals at our
landfill. Depreciation increased $65,071 primarily due to the purchase of a new bulldozer in the
prior year.
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Revenue by Source - Business-type
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INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the
government’s net resources available for discretionary use as they represent the portion of fund balance
which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external party, the City itself, or
a group or individual that has been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes
by the City Council.

At September 30, 2022, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $19,670,596,
an increase of $77,264 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 41.8% of this amount
($8,231,519) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is restricted for particular purposes ($2,408,096),
committed for particular purposes ($7,545,871), nonspendable ($26,125), or assigned for particular
purposes ($1,458,985).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The fund balance of the City’s general fund
decreased $222,915 during the current fiscal year. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 67.7% of total general fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents approximately 138.8% of that same amount.

Key differences between last year’s general fund activity and this year’s include:

e $1,783,980 increase in total revenues — increase in property and sales tax revenues of
$1,157,379, decrease in franchise tax revenue of $3,106, increase in fines and court costs of
$38,305, increase in intergovernmental revenue of $575,078 and a decrease in investment
income of $2,313. Sales tax revenue increased due to increased business activity in the region
and intergovernmental revenue increased due to the hospital reimbursement for the EMS budget
and the purchase of a new ambulance by the hospital.
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e $1,654,216 increase in total expenditures — increase in public safety payroll expenditures of
$713,528, the majority related to adding personnel in the police department and an increased
EMS budget due to shift changes. Capital Outlays increased $855,109 primarily due to the
beginnings of construction of the new city hall.

The American Rescue Plan net position increased by $394,855 due to receiving $1,751,461 in grant
income while only having $661,721 in expenses and $702,196 in transfers to the Utility Fund.

The Reliever Route Fund net position decreased by $120,835 due to transfers out to other funds in the
amount of $1,132,320 and a street maintenance of $97,495 compared to sales tax revenue of
$1,106,415.

Other Governmental Funds consist of twelve Special Revenue Funds used to account for specific
revenue sources that are restricted, committed, nonspendable or assigned to expenditures for particular
purposes. The City has four funds restricted by federal or state law for law enforcement education or
activities, one fund restricted by state law for promoting tourism and the convention and hotel industry, ,
one restricted by grant restrictions set by the federal government, and one fund restricted by creditors
through a debt covenant. The City Council has committed funds for court technology, court security,
municipal jury fund, local truancy prevention & diversion, and the purchase of child safety seats. The City
has one nonspendable fund that is restricted by federal or state law related to law enforcement.
Information regarding Non-major Governmental Funds can be found on pages 101-102 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year was $1,775,138 for the Water and Sewer Fund and
$748,800 for the Sanitation Fund. Overall, water and sewer net position increased by $1,313,377 while
sanitation net position increased by $209,263. As noted earlier in the discussion of business-type
activities, the increase for the Water and Sewer Fund results primarily from the increased water usage
and the transfer from the American Rescue Plan Fund in the amount of $702,196.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Original budget compared to final budget. The City Council approved additional appropriations of
$6,127,492 to the original General Fund budget as follows (1) $50,000 for an extension of a water line, (2)
$224,000 for the purchase of a sanitation truck, (3) $348,000 to purchase two Chevy Tahoes and two
Ford Pick-ups for the Police Department, (4) $1,280,492 for the construction of water lines, sewer lines,
and curb and gutter, (5) $4,200,000 for the construction of the new city hall, and (6) $25,000 for a UTV
terrain vehicle for the police department.

Final budget compared to actual results. The most significant differences between budgeted and
actual revenues were as follows:

Revenue Source Budgeted Revenues Actual Revenues Difference
Sales Tax $3,450,000 $4,425,661 $975,661
.25% Property Reduction Sales Tax 862,500 1,106,415 243,915
Investment Income 229,342 105,377 (123,965)

Sales tax revenues for the City trend with wide fluctuations in oil prices. Sales tax revenues were higher
than last year due to increased business activity in the region. Investment Income was lower due to lower
interest rates.

Total actual expenditures fell short of the budgeted expenditures by $4,277,339. Capital expenditures of

$4,200,000 for the construction of the new city hall were budgeted in 2022 but it was not completed in
2022.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The City of Andrews investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2022, amounts to $65,707,412 net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital
assets includes land, building, equipment, improvements, and infrastructure. The City’s total investment in
capital assets for the fiscal year increased 4.07%.

Maijor capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

The purchase of two Ford Explorers and a Ford F150 for the police department for $207,805.
Fiber Optic agreement with Windstream for $197,146

City Hall roof restoration for $117,020.

The purchase of an ambulance for $244,001.

The South Loop Drainage Issue for $134,712.

Curb and Gutter for SW Ave E for $122,787.

Seal coating the interior streets for $240,000.

The beginning of construction of the new city hall for $800,560.

Pool improvements totaling $191,358.

The water department began many capital projects but they were not completed including 20”
g;péaglir;%gom Florey to Mustang for $499,805 and the Florey booster station discharge header for

Drilling two new DCP wells for $484,589,

500K groundwater storage tank for $856,346

Replace and upgrade approximately 600 water meters at a cost of $321,537.

Replace 1% of the City’s water lines for 338,010 and 1% of the sewer lines for $231,493.

Capital Assets at Year-end
(net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-type Total
$000 Activities Activities

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Land $1,409 $1,409 $3,294 $3,294 $4,703 $4,703
Buildings 6,309 5,509 3,329 3,345 9,638 8,854
Improvements other than buildings 4,378 4,477 20 23 4,398 4,500
Infrastructure 22,977 23,527 - - 22,977 23,527
Machinery & Equipment 2,415 2,061 1,850 2,106 4,265 4,167
Water & Sewer System - - 19,727 17,387 19,727 17,387
Total $37,488 $36,983 $28,220 $26,155 $65,708 $63,138

More detailed information on the City’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $16,635,000, all of
which is backed by the full faith and credit of the government. The remainder of the City’s long-term
obligations consists of pension-related debt of $3,274,209.

Outstanding Debt at Year-end

Governmental Business-type Total
$000 Activities Activities

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
General obligation bonds $10,930 $11,250 $5,705 $ - $16,635 $11,250
Pension related debt 1,248 2,346 484 928 1,732 3,274
Total $12,178  $13,596 $6,189 $928 $18,367 $14,524

The City’s total debt increased by $4,483,882 or 27.97% during the current fiscal year as the City’s
financial responsibility for pensions decreased.

In August 2021, Fitch Ratings kept the City’s long-term issuer default rating on its general obligation debt
at “AA”.

There is no statutory debt limitation in the City Charter or under State law. The City’s Fiscal Principles and
Policies states the City will strive to limit general obligation annual debt service requirements to 20% of
general governmental expenditures. Debt service to total general expenditures for fiscal year ending
September 30, 2022 was 6.00%.

More detailed information on the City’s debt is presented in Note 9 to the financial statements.
EcoNOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2023
budget, tax rates, and fees that will be charged for business-type activities. Some of the major factors are
included below.

e Sales tax, by its very nature, is a volatile revenue source. With as much as 80% of the City’s
economy tied in some way or another to the oil industry, sales taxes trend with wide fluctuation in oil
prices. The oilfield has started to turn around since the COVID 19 pandemic and the sales tax
revenues have been trending above budget. Sales tax revenues were $1,000,000 over budget for FY
2022. Sales tax revenues for 2023 are budgeted with an increase of $525,000 compared to FY 2022.

e Taxable assessed property values for the City increased 5.2% in 2022 to $984,920,701. The City kept
the ad valorem tax rate the same at $0.180475.

e The increase of water rates by 20% on volumes greater than 2,000 gallon per month in 2021 has
improved the Utility Fund significantly. For 2023, water rates increased by 3%.

¢ Sanitation collection rates will remain the same for 2023.
¢ The City’s full-time employee headcount is budgeted to stay the same in 2023.

o New Capital expenditures for fiscal year 2023 are budgeted at $4.8 million. Of this total, $0.7 million is
directed to seal coating 1/3 of Loop 1910 and selected interior roads, $0.7 Million to replace 1% of the
water and sewer lines, $0.3 million to extend 5" street to Mustang Ridge, and $0.3 million to
purchase four equipped vehicles for the police department.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general overview
of the city’s finances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional information, contact
the Department of Finance, Attn: Ashton Jones, at 111 Logsdon, Andrews, Texas 79714, call 432-523-
4820, or e-mail at ajones@cityofandrews.org.
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City of Andrews, Texas
Government-wide Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2022

Primary Government Component Unit Fiduciary
Governmental Business Type Andrews Econ. Custodial
Activities Activities Total Dev. Corp. Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,236,759 $ 10,679,824 $ 23,916,583 $ 8,099,759 $ 127,192
Investments 6,054,364 867,312 6,921,676 1,329,000 -
Receivables (net of allow. for doubtful accts) 2,085,812 582,009 2,667,821 233,642
Due from other funds - - - - -
Inventories - 143,304 143,304 - -
Prepaid items - 707 707 - -
Capital Assets:
Land 1,408,535 3,294,007 4,702,542 2,500,303 -
Building 9,703,090 4,291,430 13,994,520 - -
Improvements other than buildings 8,466,986 75,647 8,542,633 779,508 -
Infrastructure 33,043,335 - 33,043,335 - -
Water & sewer systems 34,278,598 34,278,598 - -
Machinery & equipment 7,028,221 4,473,993 11,502,214 7,559 -
Accumulated depreciation (22,162,527) (18,193,903) (40,356,430) (241,508) -
Total Assets 58,864,575 40,492,928 99,357,503 12,708,263 127,192
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Pension Related (TMRS):
Difference between expected and actual experience - 456,525 456,525 41,651 -
Difference between projected and actual earnings 599,681 236,961 836,642 - -
Difference due to changes in actuarial assumptions 52,362 21,582 73,944 815 -
Deferred pension contributions 349,762 129,415 479,177 5,086 -
Pension Related (TESRS):
Difference due to changes in actuarial assumptions 3,165 - 3,165 - -
Deferred pension contributions 10,467 - 10,467 - -
Total Deferred Outflows 1,015,437 844,483 1,859,920 47,552 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 310,179 195,142 505,321 4,882 -
Accrued Interest Payable 74,700 74,700 - -
Other payables 256,638 20,096 276,734 756 127,192
Customer Deposits 10,000 301,210 311,210 - -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 349,412 113,667 463,079 - -
Due in more than one year 12,731,818 7,828,586 20,560,404 32,267 -
Total Liabilities 13,732,747 8,458,701 22,191,448 37,905 127,192
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Pension Related (TMRS):
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,655,963 1,145,138 2,801,101 44,890 -
Difference between projected and actual earnings - - - 13,660 -
Pension Related (TESRS):
Difference between expected and actual experience 32,129 - 32,129 - -
Difference between projected and actual earnings 55,226 - 55,226 - -
Total Deferred Inflows 1,743,318 1,145,138 2,888,456 58,550 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 26,746,527 28,219,772 54,966,299 3,045,862 -
Nonspendable
Confiscated funds 26,125 - 26,125 - -
Restricted for:
Confiscated for police investigations 12,877 - 12,877 - -
Law enforcement education programs 13,585 - 13,585 - -
General obligation debt 127,485 - 127,485 - -
Hotel Occupancy Tax 111,204 - 111,204 - -
Landfill Closure - 989,862 989,862 - -
Grant Restrictions 2,142,945 2,142,945
Unrestricted 15,223,199 2,523,938 17,747,137 9,613,498 -
Total Net Position $ 44,403,947  §$ 31,733,572  $ 76,137,519 $12,659,360 $ -

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General gov't and admin
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture - recreation
Economic development
Interest
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Sanitation
Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

Component Unit:
Andrews Economic Dev. Corp.
Total Component Unit

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

City of Andrews, Texas

Program Revenues

Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

29

Fees, Fines Operating Capital Primary Government Component Unit
and Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental ~ Business -type Andrews Econ.
Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Dev. Corp.
$ 1,776,158 $ 70,229 $ - $ - $ (1,705,929) $ - $ (1,705,929)
6,072,632 447,272 4,042,042 20,803 (1,562,515) - (1,562,515)
2,424,567 - - - (2,424,567) - (2,424,567)
1,220,101 58,514 - 300 (1,161,287) - (1,161,287)
292,019 43,295 50,000 - (198,724) - (198,724)
356,535 (356,535) - (356,535)
12,142,012 619,310 4,092,042 21,103 (7,409,557) - (7,409,557)
4,698,739 5,056,233 - - - 357,494 357,494
1,914,635 2,098,780 - - - 184,145 184,145
6,613,374 7,155,013 - - - 541,639 541,639
$ 18,755,386 $ 7,774,323 $ 4,092,042 $ 21,103 (7,409,557) 541,639 (6,867,917)
b 539,916 $ - $ - $ - S (539,916)
$ 539,916 $ - $ - $ - S (539,916)
General revenues:
Taxes
Property 1,690,985 - 1,690,985 -
Sales 6,646,486 - 6,646,486 2,212,830
Franchise 701,972 - 701,972 -
Other 239,282 - 239,282 -
Miscellaneous revenue 42,173 184,103 226,276 -
Investment income 116,760 92,702 209,462 70,616
Gain on disposition of assets - 2,000 2,000 309,271
Transfers (702,196) 702,196 - -
Total general revenues and transfers 8,735,462 981,001 9,716,463 2,592,717
Change in net position 1,325,906 1,522,640 2,848,546 2,052,801
Net position, beginning 43,078,041 30,210,932 73,288,973 10,611,430
Prior Period Adjustment - - (4,871)
Net position, ending $ 44,403,947 $ 31,733,572 $ 76,137,519 $ 12,659,360




City of Andrews, Texas
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
September 30, 2022

Debt American Reliever Other Total
General Sevice Rescue Plan Route Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,402,917 - $ 2,184,247 $ 392,503 $ 257,092 13,236,759
Investments 6,054,364 - - - - 6,054,364
Due from Other Funds - 127,485 - - - 127,485
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) -
Ad valorem taxes 187,386 - - - - 187,386
Sales taxes 925,769 - - - - 925,769
Miscellaneous 23,921 - - - - 23,921
Interest 15,625 - - - - 15,625
Total Assets $ 17,609,982 $ 127,485 $ 2,184,247 $ 392,503 $ 257,092 $ 20,571,309
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS - - - - - -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 268,777 $ - $ 41,302 $ 100 $ - 310,179
Due to other funds - - - 127,485 - 127,485
Other payables 256,638 - - - - 256,638
Customer deposits 4,025 - - - 10,000 14,025
Unearned revenue 192,386 - - - - 192,386
Total Liabilities 721,826 - 41,302 127,585 10,000 900,713
DEFERRED INFLOWS - - - - - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable
Confiscated funds - - 26,125 26,125
Restricted:
Confiscated funds for police investigations - - - - 12,877 12,877
Law enforcement education programs - - - - 13,585 13,585
General obligation debt - 127,485 - - - 127,485
Hotel Occupancy Tax - - 111,204 111,204
Grant Restrictions 2,142,945 2,142,945
Committed:
Capital improvement projects 6,919,703 - - - - 6,919,703
Ambulance services 277,949 - - - - 277,949
Reliever Route maintenance - - - 264,918 - 264,918
Court technology projects - - - - 10,717 10,717
Child safety seat purchases - - - - 538 538
Court security projects - - - - 47,148 47,148
Local Truancy Prevention - - 24,410 24,410
Municipal Jury Fund - - 488 488
Assigned:
Pension Liability 1,281,528 - - - - 1,281,528
Adult education programs 130,269 - - - - 130,269
Litter Control 35,696 - - - - 35,696
Police investigation 11,492 - - - - 11,492
Unassigned 8,231,519 - - - - 8,231,519
Total fund balances (deficits) 16,888,156 127,485 2,142,945 264,918 247,092 19,670,596

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances $ 17,609,982 $ 127,485 $ 2,184,247 $ 392,503 $ 257,092 $ 20,571,309

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Andrews, Texas
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 19,670,596

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 37,487,640

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (13,879,786)

Deferred income is not revenue in the current period and therefore is
not reported in the Statement of Net Position. 192,386

Certain receivables and the associated allowance for uncollectible
accounts are not current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds. 933,111

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 44,403,947

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Andrews, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

REVENUES

Taxes
Franchise fees
License, permits, fees
Charges for services
Fines and court costs
Miscellaneous
Investment income
Intergovernmental revenue
Grant income
Contributions

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General governmental and administration
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture-recreation
Economic development

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Capital outlay:
General governmental and administration
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture-recreation
Economic development

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in
Transfers out
General obligation bond issued
Sale of general capital assets
Lawsuit settlement
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund balance, beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

Fund balance, ending

Governmental Funds
For the year ended September 30, 2022

Debt American Reliever Other Total
General Service Rescue Plan Route Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
7,265,927 - - $ 224,812 $ 7,490,739
701,972 - - - - 701,972
67,255 - - - - 67,255
58,514 - - - - 58,514
273,346 - - - 30,930 304,276
564,781 - - - - 564,781
105,377 - 7,311 2,565 1,507 116,760
2,424,070 - - 1,106,415 - 3,530,485
70,803 - 1,751,461 - 1,411 1,823,675
11,532,045 - 1,758,772 1,108,980 258,660 14,658,457
2,174,151 - - - 28,244 2,202,395
5,788,407 - - - 4,256 5,792,663
1,183,374 - - 97,495 - 1,280,869
513,896 - - - 200,000 713,896
118,731 - - - - 118,731
- 320,000 - - - 320,000
- 409,320 - - - 409,320
239,769 - 197,146 - - 436,915
756,437 - 25,024 - - 781,461
278,393 - 398,247 - - 676,640
1,112,033 - 41,304 - - 1,153,337
12,165,191 729,320 661,721 97,495 232,500 13,886,227
(633,146) (729,320) 1,097,051 1,011,485 26,160 772,230
403,000 729,320 - - - 1,132,320
- - (702,196) (1,132,320) - (1,834,516)
7,231 - - - - 7,231
410,231 729,320 (702,196) (1,132,320) - (694,965)
(222,915) - 394,855 (120,835) 26,160 77,265
17,111,071 127,485 1,748,090 385,753 220,932 19,593,331
$ 16,888,156 $ 127,485 $ 2,142,945 $ 264,918 $ 247,092 $ 19,670,596

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Andrews, Texas
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended September 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 77,265

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (SOA)
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, the cost of those assets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capital outlays ($2,100,047) exceded depreciation expense

($2,500,412). 504,664

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-

term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,

governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,

and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are deferred

and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of

these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 320,000

Some revenues/expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as
revenues/expenditures in governmental funds. 423,977

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 1,325,906

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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For the year ended September 30, 2022

REVENUES

Taxes
Franchise fees
License, permits, fees
Charges for services
Fines and court costs
Miscellaneous
Investment income
Intergovernmental revenue
Grant income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General gov't and admin
Public safety
Highways and street
Culture - recreation
Economic development
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
General government and admin.
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture-recreation
Economic development

City of Andrews, Texas
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and other uses

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in

Transfers out

General obligation bond issued

Sale of general capital assets

Lawsuit settlement

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 6,064,462 $ 6,064,462 $ 7,265,927 $ 1,201,465
730,000 $ 730,000 701,972 (28,028)
49,350 $ 49,350 67,255 17,905
65,000 $ 65,000 58,514 (6,486)
320,650 $ 320,650 273,346 (47,304)
532,148 $§ 532,148 564,781 32,633
229,342 $ 229,342 105,377 (123,965)
2,439,769 $ 2,439,769 2,424,070 (15,699)
50,000 § 50,000 70,803 20,803
10,480,721 10,480,721 11,532,045 1,051,324
2,138,039 2,138,039 2,174,152 (36,113)
5,688,003 5,688,003 5,788,407 (100,404)
787,223 787,223 1,183,374 (396,151)
467,188 467,188 513,895 (46,707)
130,807 130,807 118,731 12,076
226,150 222,650 239,769 (17,119)
1,075,982 1,448,982 756,437 692,545
602,000 602,000 278,393 323,607
605,138 4,848,638 1,112,033 3,736,605
149,000 109,000 - 109,000
11,869,530 16,442,530 12,165,191 4,277,339
(1,388,809) (5,961,809) (633,146) 5,328,663
443,000 443,000 403,000 40,000

- - 7,231 (7,231)

443,000 443,000 410,231 32,769
(945,809) (5,518,809) (222,915) 5,361,432
17,111,071 17,111,071 17,111,071 -
$16,165,262 $11,592,262 $16,888,156 $ 5,361,432

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Andrews, Texas
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment-treasury securities/cert. of dep.
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
(net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $19,267)
Inventories
Prepaid costs
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets
Land
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure

Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Pension Related:
Difference between expected and actual experience
Difference between projected and actual earnings
Difference due to changes in actuarial assumptions
Deferred pension contributions
Total Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Bond Payable in One Year
Bond Premium in One Year
Sales tax payable
Customer deposits
Accrued compensated absences
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued pension benefit payable
Bond Payable

Bond Premium

Landfill closure costs

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS

Pension Related:
Difference between expected and actual experience
Total Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:

Landfill closure costs
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

Sewer Sanitation Total
$ 8,508,713 $ 2,171,111 $ 10,679,824
- 867,000 867,000
- 312 312
400,349 181,660 582,009
143,304 - 143,304
707 - 707
9,053,073 3,220,083 12,273,156
1,555,631 1,738,376 3,294,007
4,107,515 183,915 4,291,430
1,365,782 3,183,858 4,549,640
34,278,598 - 34,278,598
(16,593,383) (1,600,520) (18,193,903)
24,714,143 3,505,629 28,219,772
33,767,216 6,725,712 40,492,928
251,406 205,119 456,525
129,431 107,530 236,961
11,885 9,697 21,582
68,648 60,767 129,415
461,370 383,113 844,483
150,750 44,392 195,142
7,459 12,637 20,096
80,000 - 80,000
31,667 31,667
294,910 6,300 301,210
1,000 1,000 2,000
565,786 64,329 630,115
79,654 79,640 159,294
267,325 217,103 484,428
5,625,000 5,625,000
570,002 570,002
- 989,862 989,862
6,541,981 1,286,605 7,828,586
7,107,767 1,350,934 8,458,701
631,538 513,600 1,145,138
631,538 513,600 1,145,138
24,714,143 3,505,629 28,219,772
- 989,862 989,862
1,775,138 748,800 2,523,938
$ 26,489,281 $ 5,244,291 $ 31,733,572




City of Andrews, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended September 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and
Sewer Sanitation Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Water $ 3,894,528 $ - $ 3,894,528
Sewer 1,025,099 - 1,025,099
Sanitation - 2,098,780 2,098,780
Other 136,606 - 136,606
Total Operating Revenues 5,056,233 2,098,780 7,155,013
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 862,798 658,687 1,521,485
Supplies 959,945 148,431 1,108,376
Maintenance & Repairs 310,195 159,148 469,343
Outside Services 900,553 167,938 1,068,491
Other Operating Expense 461,427 294,463 755,890
Landfill closure 110,295 110,295
Depreciation 1,203,821 375,673 1,579,494
Total Operating Expenses 4,698,739 1,914,635 6,613,374
Income from Operations 357,494 184,145 541,639
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 67,584 25,118 92,702
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of capital assets 2,000 2,000
Rent 120,923 - 120,923
Surface Damages / Water Disposal 31,513 - 31,513
General Obligation Bond Premium Amortization 31,667 - 31,667
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 253,687 25,118 278,805
Income before capital contributions and transfers 611,181 209,263 820,444
Capital contributions - -
Transfers in from American Rescue Plan 702,196 - 702,196
Change in Net Position 1,313,377 209,263 1,522,640
Net Position, beginning 25,175,904 5,035,028 30,210,932
Prior Period Adjustment - - 0
Net Position, ending $ 26,489,281 $ 5,244,291 $ 31,733,573

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Andrews, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended September 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customer
Other operating cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to other funds for services
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Cash transfer from American Rescue Fund for Capital Projects
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Income from Surface Damage and Salt Water Disposal on City Property

Rental income from City assets
General Obligation Bond Premium Amortization
General Obligation Bond Issue
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on cash and investments
Purchase of treasury securities/certificate of deposit
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of income from operations to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Landfill closure costs
Prior Period Adjustment
Provision for doubtful accounts
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in interest receivable
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Decrease (increase) in prepaid costs
Decrease (increase) in deferred outflows of resources for pensions
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in sales tax payable
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in pension benefit obligation
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of resources for pensions
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

Sewer Sanitation Total
$ 5,307,477 $ 2,139,361 $ 7,446,838
- 2,298 2,298
(2,596,173) (461,011) (3,057,184)
(956,064) (749,639) (1,705,703)
(134,394) (294,463) (428,857)
1,620,846 636,546 2,257,392
(3,524,277) (119,503) (3,643,780)
702,196 - 702,196
2,000 - 2,000
31,513 - 31,513
120,923 - 120,923
31,667 31,667
6,306,669 6,306,669
3,670,691 (119,503) 3,551,188
67,583 25,118 92,701
- (168,761) (168,761)
67,583 (143,643) (76,060)
5,359,120 373,400 5,732,520
3,149,594 1,797,710 4,947,304
$ 8,508,714 $ 2,171,110 $ 10,679,824
$ 357,494 $ 184,145 $ 541,639
1,203,821 375,673 1,579,494
110,295 110,295
(1,977) - (1,977)
86,597 40,581 127,178
- 2,298 2,298
160,068 - 160,068
2,971 - 2,971
246 - 246
(324,183) (264,498) (588,681)
(101,664) 14,107 (87,557)
2,965 3,852 6,817
9,829 (8,271) 1,558
(244,540) (199,517) (444,057)
6,556 400 6,956
462,663 377,481 840,144
$ 1,620,846 $ 636,546 $ 2,257,392
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CITY OF ANDREWS, TEXAS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Andrews, Texas (the City), was founded in 1937. The City operates under the Council-Manager
form of government as adopted by a Home Rule Charter approved June 9, 1959. The City provides a full
range of municipal services including public safety (police, EMS, and fire), highway and streets, parks and
recreation, health and welfare, planning and zoning and general administrative services. In addition, the
City provides water, sewer, and sanitation service as a proprietary function of the City.

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) which is the recognized financial accounting standard
setting body for governmental entities. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the City’s
general purpose financial statements.

A. Reporting entity

The accompanying financial statements present the primary government — the City of Andrews — and
its component unit(s), entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable and
an organization which, if excluded, would cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s
operations, even though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are
appropriately presented as funds of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is
legally separate from the government.

The criteria considered in determining activities to be reported within the City’s basic financial
statements are based upon and consistent with those set forth in the Codification of Governmental
Accounting Standards, Section 2100, “Defining the Financial Reporting Entity.” The criteria includes
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the City holds the corporate powers of the organization

the City appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the City is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City
there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

Discretely presented component unit. The Andrews Economic Development Corporation (AEDC)
began operations as a 501(c)(3) corporation in January, 2006 to create, manage, operate, and
supervise programs and activities to promote, assist, and enhance economic development and
business enterprises within and around the City. The AEDC’s operations are funded solely by a %2 cent
sales tax for economic development approved by the voters in May, 2005. The primary government
appoints the five-member board, is financially accountable, is able to impose its will on the organization,
and can significantly influence operations and/or activities of the organization. The AEDC does not
issue separate financial statements. Instead, the AEDC financial statements are included on pages
126-128 of this report and are included within the scope of the independent audit.

B. Basis of Presentation — Government-wide Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service
funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds. Separate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
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CITY OF ANDREWS, TEXAS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these
statements.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Government-wide Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources of the City
and is presented in an “assets plus deferred outflows minus liabilities minus deferred inflows equal net
position” format as required by GASB Statement No. 63. Net position is required to be displayed in
three components: (1) invested in capital assets net of related debt; (2) restricted; and (3) unrestricted.
Invested in capital assets net of related debt equals capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
is reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Restricted net assets are
those with constraints placed on their use as: (1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position is the assets neither
restricted nor invested in capital assets (net of related debt). Reservations or designations of net assets
imposed by the City, whether by administrative policy or legislative actions of the City Council that do
not otherwise meet the definition of restricted net assets, are considered unrestricted in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function. Taxes and other items properly not included among program revenues are reported instead
as general revenues.

. Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred
inflows, fund balance/net position, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Government resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds for the purpose of carrying on specific activities in
accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. Major individual governmental
and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The type and purpose of funds is described below.
Governmental Funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are

financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current
financial resources.
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CITY OF ANDREWS, TEXAS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

» The City reports three major governmental funds — the General Fund, the American Rescue Plan
Fund, and the Reliever Route Fund. The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. All
general tax revenues and other receipts are accounted for in this fund. General operating
expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs are paid from the General Fund. The
Reliever Route Fund consists of sales tax funds committed to the repair and maintenance of the
City's truck reliever route. The American Rescue Plan Fund is grant funding from the federal
government in response to the Corona Virus.

Additionally, the City reports nine Special Revenue Funds as Other Governmental Funds.
These nine Special Revenue Funds are used to account for monies received and expended for
the following specific purposes: Court Technology, Police Investigation, Police Education, Police
Forfeiture, Child Safety Seats, Court Security, Local Truancy Preventions, Municipal Jury Fund,
and Hotel Occupancy Tax. Of these funds, the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund were budgeted in
2021-22.

Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial
position and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Position. The City
reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water and Sewer (Utility) Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services
to the residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and
maintenance of the water and sewer system and billing and collection activities. All costs are
financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if
necessary to ensure the integrity of the fund.

Sanitation Fund is used to account for operations of solid waste collection and disposal services.
All costs are financed through charges to sanitation customers.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual services, supplies
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Additionally, the City reports two Custodial Funds. Custodial funds are custodial in nature (assets
equal liabilities) and involve the economic resources measurement focus. The accrual basis of
accounting is used. The City has two custodial funds: the Escrow Fund, and the Employee Christmas
Fund.

During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances
to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations
are made in preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds
included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal
balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included
as internal balances in the business-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported
in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so
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that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as
current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of
transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic
resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are
included on the statement of net position and the operating statements present increases (revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned, including unbilled water and sewer services which are accrued. Expenses
are recognized at the time the liability is incurred.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when
they become both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can
be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available, generally, if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. The City
considers the grant availability period to be one year for revenue recognition. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred. Expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded
only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for service, interest income and intergovernmental
revenues are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscal period. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the
government are also recognized as revenue. All other governmental fund revenues are recognized
when received.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary
Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose,
plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which
is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, & net position/fund balance
1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near to maturity that they present insignificant risk of
changes in value because of changes in interest rates. The City has included both cash in bank and
cash invested in investment pools that have the general characteristics of demand deposit accounts in
that additional cash may deposited at any time and also effectively may withdraw cash at any time
without prior notice or penalty, (TexSTAR and Texas CLASS) as cash equivalents.
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Investments authorized by the City’s investment policy, which is guided by state laws and city
ordinances, generally include: obligations of the United States of America or its agencies and
instrumentalities; fully-collateralized Certificates of Deposit from City Council-approved public
depositories; direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; other
obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by, or backed
by the full faith and credit of, the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and
instrumentalities; obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions; no-
load money market mutual funds registered and regulated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission; corporate commercial paper; fully collateralized repurchase agreements; and reverse
repurchase agreements within specific terms.

Investments maturing within one-year of date of purchase are displayed on the statement of net position
in the basic financial statements at cost or amortized cost; all other investments are stated at fair value
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, and GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application. All investment income is recognized in the appropriate fund’s statement of activity and
or statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance.

2. Receivables and Payables

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Balances of accounts
receivable, reported on the government-wide statement of net position, are aggregations of different
components such as charges for services, fines, and balances due from taxpayers or other
governments. Receivables reported in business-type activities are primarily comprised of charges for
services

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other funds”
or “due to other funds” on the balance sheet. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial
statements as “internal balances.”

3. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

The inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first
in/first out (FIFO) method. The costs are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid expenses in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. Renewals and betterments are
capitalized. ltems must cost more than $1,000 to be capitalized.

All capital assets purchased or constructed are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
actual historical is not available. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and
capital assets received in a service concession agreement are reported at acquisition value rather than
fair value. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses.
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Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life
Buildings 20-50 years
Water and Sewer System 20-50 years
Infrastructure 20-40 years
Machinery & Equipment 5-10 years
Improvements 10-20 years

5. Deferred outflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial element, deferred outflows of resources,
represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government has the following items
that qualify for reporting in this category:

e Pension contributions after measurement date — These contributions are deferred and reported
as a reduction in net pension liability or increase in net pension asset in the year subsequent
to their deferral.

o Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension investments — This difference is
deferred and amortized to pension expense over a closed five year period.

e Difference in expected and actual pension experience — This difference is deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period.

o Difference due to changes in actuarial assumptions — This difference is deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period.

6. Compensated Absences

The amounts owed to employees for unpaid vacation and sick leave liabilities, including the City’s share
of employment-related taxes, are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in the applicable
governmental or business-type activity columns of the government-wide statements and in the
proprietary activities of the fund financial statements. The liabilities and expenditures are reported on
the modified accrual basis in the governmental fund financial statements; the estimated liability for
governmental funds is the amount of vacation, exception vacation, and sick leave at termination
payable within 60 days of fiscal year-end.

7. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from the TMRS’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose,
plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which
is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Information
regarding the City’s total pension liability is obtained from TMRS through a report prepared for the City
by TMRS consulting actuary, Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company, in compliance with Governmental
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Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.

8. Long-term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method which
approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are recognized as expenses in the
period incurred.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, are recognized in the period the debt is issued. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Deferred inflows of resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has the following items that qualify
for reporting in this category:

e Pension contributions after measurement date — These contributions are deferred and reported
as a reduction in net pension liability or increase in net pension asset in the year subsequent
to their deferral.

o Difference due to changes in actuarial assumptions — This difference is deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period.

10. Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted
before unrestricted — net position is applied.

11. Fund balance flow assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. Itis the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have
been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance
is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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12. Fund balance reporting

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The hierarchy of five possible
classifications of fund balance is:

= Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spend due to form or amounts that must be
maintained intact legally or contractually.

= Restricted — Amounts constrained for a specific purpose by external parties, constitutional
provision or enabling legislation.

= Committed — Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the City Council — the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
City Council can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund
balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar
action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. Only action
that constitutes the most binding constraint should be considered a commitment for fund balance
classification purposes.

= Assigned — For all governmental funds other than the general fund, any remaining positive
amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted or committed. For the general fund, amounts
constrained for the intent to be used for a specific purpose by a governing board or a body or
official that has been delegated authority to assign amounts. The City Council by resolution has
delegated such authority to the Director of Finance.

= Unassigned — For the general fund, amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted,
committed or assigned. The general fund is the only fund that would report a positive amount in
unassigned fund balance. For all governmental funds other than the general fund, amount
expended in excess of resources that are nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned (a
residual deficit). In determining a residual deficit, no amount should be reported as assigned.

F. Revenues and expenditures/expenses

Program revenues — Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and (2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes,
including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported
as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Property Taxes — Property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed (appraised) value listed as of
the prior January 1 for all real and business personal property located in the City. Appraised values are
established by the Andrews County Appraisal District at 100% for estimated fair market value. Andrews
Independent School District is contracted to bill and collect the city taxes.

Property taxes at the fund level are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues at the time the
taxes are assessed. Revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are collected. Additional
amounts estimated to be collectible in time to be a resource for payment of obligations incurred during
the fiscal year and therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles have been recognized as revenue.

The City is permitted by Section 5 of the Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of
assessed valuation for general governmental services.
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In Texas, county-wide central appraisal districts are required under the Property Tax Code to assess
all property within the appraisal district on the basis of 100% of its fair value and are prohibited from
applying any assessment ratios. The value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed at
least every three years; however, the city may, at its own expense, require annual reviews of appraised
values. The City may challenge appraised values established by the appraisal district through various
appeals, and if necessary, legal action. Under this legislation the City continues to set tax rates on City
property. However, if the no new revenue tax rate, adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate
for the previous year by more than 8%, qualified voters of the City may petition for an election to
determine whether to limit the tax rate to no more than 8% above the effective tax rate of the previous
year.

Property Tax Calendar

Levy Date January 1
Billing Date October 1
Collection Dates October 1 — January 31
Delinquent Date February 1
Lien Date February 1

Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses — Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water
and Sewer Fund and the Sanitation Fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The Water
and Sewer Fund also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the
cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Transactions between funds — The City allocates to the proprietary funds an indirect cost percentage
for administration and financial services that include costs of personnel and other indirect costs deemed
necessary for their operations. During the year ended September 30, 2022, the City allocated $529,840
for these services. Such revenues are recorded as a reduction of expense in the General Fund on the
government-wide statements.

. New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, “Leases”. This statement increases the usefulness
of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for
leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The requirements of

this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Management has determined GASB 87 does not have a material effect on the financials statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the
End of a Construction Period”. This statement will enhance the relevance and comparability of
information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and will simplify
accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020 as postponed by GASB
95. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash
flows upon adoption.

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, “Conduit Debt Obligations”. This statement is to
provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in
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practice associated with 1) commitments extended by issuers, 2) arrangements associated with conduit
debt obligations, and 3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2022. GASB 91 currently has no impact on the financial
position, results of operations or cash flow.

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92, “Omnibus 2020”. This statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting requirements for specific issues related to leases, intra-entity
transfers of assets, postemployment benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing and insurance-
related activities of public entity risk pools, fair value measurements, and derivative instruments. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 30, 2022. The
City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon
adoption.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93, “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates”. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to the replacement of
IBORs in hedging derivative instruments and leases. It also identifies appropriate benchmark interest
rates for hedging derivative instruments. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods ending after June 30, 2022. GASB 93 currently has no impact on the financial position, results
of operations or cash flow.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements”. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and financial
reporting for PPPs and APAs for governments. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 30, 2023. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements”. This Statement provides guidance on accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs)for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-
use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides
the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs
of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. The
City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon
adoption.

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.” This
statement (1) clarifies rules related to reporting of fiduciary activities under Statements No. 14 and No.
84; (2) mitigate costs for defined contribution plans; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of Code section 457 plans that meet the
definition of a pension plan. The requirements in paragraphs 4 and 5 are effective upon issuance. All
other requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods
beginning after June 30, 2022.

In October 2021, the GASB issued Statement No. 98, “The Annual Comprehensive Annual Report”.
The statement addresses references in authoritative literature to the term comprehensive annual
financial report. The Statement replaces an existing term but does not otherwise establish new
accounting and financial reporting requirements. Comprehensive annual financial report has been
replaced with annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR). The requirements of this statement are
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2021 with earlier application encouraged. GASB
98 has been implemented for the City for Fiscal Year September 30, 2022.

49



CITY OF ANDREWS, TEXAS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

The City of Andrews will implement new GASB pronouncements no later than the required effective
date. The City is currently evaluating whether or not the above listed new GASB pronouncements will
have a significant impact to the City’s financial statements.

NOTE 2: RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in
governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The
details of this $37,487,640 are as follows:

Land $ 1,408,535
Buildings 9,703,090
Less: Accumulated depreciation — buildings (3,393,833)
Improvements other than buildings 8,466,986
Less: Accumulated depreciation — improvements (4,088,734)
Infrastructure 33,043,335
Less: Accumulated depreciation — infrastructure (10,066,458)
Machinery and equipment 7,028,221

Less: Accumulated depreciation — machinery & equipment (4,613,502)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities $37,487,640

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of
this $13,836,419 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $10,930,000
Add: Issuance premium (to be amortized over life of debt) 188,889
Pension-related debt 2,018,811
Compensated absences 667,386
Accrued interest payable 74,700

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities $13,879,786

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “deferred income is not revenue in the current period
and therefore is not reported in the Statement of Net Position.” The City has $192,386 in deferred
income from ad valorem taxes expected to be collected within 60 days of the close of the fiscal year.

The final element of that reconciliation explains that “certain receivables and the associated allowance for
uncollectible accounts are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The
details of this $933,111 difference are as follows:

Court citations receivable $ 923,091
Weed control receivable 10,020

Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities $ 933,111
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B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that “governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, the cost of those assets is allocated
over the estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital
assets recorded in the current period.” The details of this $(504,664) difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ (3,048,354)
Sale of Assets -
Depreciation expense 2,543,690

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
position of governmental activities $  (504,664)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities.” The City made principal repayments of $320,000 during fiscal
year 2022 increasing changes in fund balances — total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
position of governmental activities.

The final element of that reconciliation states that “some revenues/expenses reported in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as
revenues/expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $423,977 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $( 67,633)
Pension liability 396,175
Court citations issued not billed 54,970
Weed control services not billed (306)
Property tax not collectable in 60 days 4,599
ASID School Resource Officer Billing (25,000)
Amortization on bond premium 8,387
Accrued interest expense on bond 52,785

Net adjustment to increase the net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities. $423,977
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NOTE 3: CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the primary government are reported in governmental and business-
type activities. The balances at September 30, 2022, are as follows:

Primary Fiduciary Total Component
Government  Activities ~ Government Unit Total
Cash on hand $ 1,276  $ - $ 1,276 $ - 9 1,276
Bank Deposits 956,412 127,192 1,083,604 41,804 1,125,408
State Investment Pools 22,958,895 22,958,895 8,057,955 31,016,850

Total cash and equivalents  $ 23,916,583 $127,192 $24,043,775 $8,099,759 $ 32,143,534

Bank Deposits — On September 30, 2022, all bank deposits were covered by federal depository
insurance or were fully collateralized by the depository in the City’s name and held by the depository’s
agent.

State Investment Pools — The City is a member of two local government investment pools —TexSTAR
and Texas CLASS. State investment pools are considered as cash equivalents for financial reporting
purposes.

TexSTAR'’s governing body is a five-member board of directors (the “Board”). Three directors are
officers or employees of Participants; one director is an officer or employee of First Southwest
Company, LLC; and the final director is an officer or employee of an affiliate of J.P. Morgan Investment
Management Inc. TexSTAR'’s Bylaws also require the Board to appoint an advisory board. The Advisory
Board currently consists of six members, each of whom is either (1) a representative of a Participant or
(2) a person who has no business relationship with the Board, but who is qualified to advise the Board.
The Advisory Board shall at all times include at least one member of each such designation.

Texas Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities S